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Wednesday, October 22, 2014
--- On commencing at 10:35 a.m.


MS. SPOEL:  Please be seated.  Good morning.  

The Board is sitting today on an application by Hydro One Brampton Networks Inc., application number EB- 2014-0083, for approval of 2015 rates.  


The parties have filed a settlement proposal which deals with all of the issues, except for three of them. The Board is sitting today to hear evidence on those three issues.

My name is Cathy Spoel and I will be the presiding member on this panel.  Sitting with me is my colleague, Christine Long. 

Before we start, could we have appearances.
Appearances:


MS. CACERES:  Good morning, Madam Chair.  I am counsel for Hydro One Brampton, first initial "M", Monica Caceres.


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.  Ms. Caceres.


MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Mark Rubenstein counsel for the School Energy Coalition. 


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you, Mr. Rubenstein.  


MR. JANIGAN:  Michael Janigan, for the Vulnerable Energy Consumers Coalition.  


MS. SPOEL:  Mr. Janigan. 


MR. AIKEN:  Randy Aiken, consultant to the Energy Probe Research Foundation.  With me is Mr. David MacIntosh. 


MS. SPOEL:  Good morning. 


MS. LEA:  Jennifer Lea for Board staff, and with me is Martha McOuat. 


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.  Before we start, there are a couple of matters.  First of all, the Board would like to advise parties that we will approve -- 


MS. LEA:  One moment, please.  


MS. SPOEL:  Technical difficulties?  

MS. LEA:  Yes, technical difficulties.  So I have been told that somebody needs to continue speaking while he tests his audio feed.  


MS. SPOEL:  Well, I can continue on and then we can repeat it for the record, if necessary.  


MS. LEA:  Okay.  


MS. SPOEL:  I think this was communicated to the parties yesterday, but just to formally put it on the record.  The Board will approve the settlement proposal that was filed and we do not need to hear a presentation of it and we do not have any questions of the witnesses, so thank you all for that.  


Before we get started, we do have one preliminary matter that we would like to raise.  We understand that the three unsettled issues pertain to the working capital allowance, the way that Hydro One Brampton Networks approached the use of heating degree days and cooling degree days for its forecast, and some issues pertaining to account 1576.  


We have familiarized ourselves with these issues and it appears to us, at this stage, that some of the matters in dispute may well be below the Applicant's materiality threshold, which we understand to be approximately $400,000. 


We would like to take this opportunity to remind parties of the Board's statement of Procedural Order No. 1 which applies to the oral hearing as well as to
pre-hearing processes, and I quote:

"Parties are reminded not to engage in detailed exploration of items that do not appear to be material, taking into account the materiality thresholds documented in Chapter 2 of the filing requirements.  In making its decision on cost awards the Board will consider whether intervenors made reasonable efforts to ensure their participation in the hearing was focused on material issues."


So I hope everybody takes that into account.


Now, one housekeeping matter again before we get started.  The Board has some time constraints today, and we apologize for the late start.  We will be breaking at 11:45 and then taking an extended luncheon break and resuming at 2:15, and we will sit until 4:45.


We understand that some of the parties may have some constraints tomorrow, so what we will do is we will assess at the end of the day today where we are and determine how we will proceed with what's left tomorrow and/or Friday, depending on how things look.  So we will deal with that at the end of the day.


I also understand that there is a request that account 1576 be dealt with first, and I am not sure whether the intention was to have examination in-chief and cross-examination on account 1576, or whether you wanted to proceed with your entire evidence in-chief and then have the cross-examination on account 1576 proceed first.


MS. CACERES:  Your first statement, Madam Chair, would be correct.  We were considering presenting examination in-chief of account 1576 and then allowing the cross-examination to proceed thereafter and then proceeding on the remaining two issues.


MS. SPOEL:  We have no objection to that.


Can you check, Ms. Lea, whether the audio is working properly?


MS. LEA:  Madam Chair, the audio feed is working now.  I think the procedural matters you just discussed with respect to the order of proceeding need not be repeated, but I would recommend that your reference to Procedural Order No. 1 and any other statements that you want on the record be repeated at this time.


MS. SPOEL:  Okay.  Well, I will restate that the Board will approve the settlement agreement without any further presentation or questions, and I will, rather than reading the whole thing again, remind parties of our statement in Procedural Order 1 not to engage in issues -- or to maintain the focus on issues that appear to be material to this application, and that's a paragraph that appears in Procedural Order 1.  It can be looked up.


MS. LEA:  Thank you very much.


MS. SPOEL:  I think it is time -- are there any other procedural matters for any parties?  No?  If not, then the witnesses could be affirmed.


MS. LONG:  Would you like to present the witness panel with their names, please, and then I will administer the affirmation.


MS. CACERES:  Yes.  To my immediate left is Mr. Dan Gapic, sitting next to him is Mr. Marc Villett, and sitting next to Mr. Villett is Ms. Ana Dinis.

HYDRO ONE BRAMPTON NETWORKS INC. - PANEL 1


Ana Dinis, Affirmed.


Dan Gapic, Affirmed.


Marc Villett, Affirmed.

Examination-In-Chief by Ms. Caceres:


MS. CACERES:  With respect to the introduction of the witness panel, if I can just get on the record sort of their titles, as well their position within the organization.  If I can start with Mr. Dan Gapic.


Can you kindly tell us your length of service at Hydro One Brampton, your current position, and what professional designations and/or degrees that you hold?


MS. SPOEL:  You have to press the button.


MR. GAPIC:  I have been employed with Hydro One Brampton now for approximately five years.  My position is regulatory affairs supervisor.  I hold the accounting designation chartered professional accountant.


MR. VILLETT:  I have been -- it is Marc Villett.  I have been employed with Hydro One Brampton for four years.  I have a CPA CMA designation.


MS. CACERES:  And your current position, Mr. Villett?


MR. VILLETT:  And my current position is vice-president of finance and administration.


MS. DINIS:  Ana Dinis.  I have been with Hydro One Brampton for 14 years.  I am the controller, and I have a CPA CGA designation.


MS. CACERES:  Thank you.


Now, Madam Chair, I do have one housekeeping issue, and that is, Hydro One Brampton delivered a document brief, served it, and filed it on the parties dated October the 20th.  I just need some guidance as to whether or not we need to enter it in as an exhibit or whether or not you would like me to enter in exhibits as the documents are referenced.


MS. SPOEL:  I think our usual practice is to enter the package as an exhibit, and we can do that now.


MS. LEA:  Yes, thank you.  That would be Exhibit K1.1. 

EXHIBIT NO. K1.1:  HYDRO ONE BRAMPTON DOCUMENT BRIEF.


MS. LEA:  Are there any hard copies available at this time?  Ms. Caceres?  If not, that's all right.

Does the Panel have a copy?

MS. SPOEL:  Yes, we do.

MS. LEA:  Thank you.  K1.1.

MS. CACERES:  And Madam Chair, do the CVs also need to be noted as an exhibit?  I know that they have been filed, but I don't know that they require a separate exhibit number.

MS. LEA:  It's probably best just to do so for identification.  K1.2, please.
EXHIBIT NO. K1.2:  CVS OF WITNESSES.

MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.

MS. CACERES:  Hydro One Brampton's going to lead off with some examination-in-chief questions on the issue of account 1576.

And I will be directing my questions to Ms. Ana Dinis.

Ms. Dinis, can you tell us what amounts did Hydro One Brampton include in deferral account 1576, accounting changes under CGAAP?

MS. DINIS:  Yes.  If I could direct you to Exhibit 9, tab 4, schedule 1, table 1, Hydro One Brampton has actual amounts in account 1576 that relate to various items.  They total $2,683,976.  And then a forecast for 2014 of $2,151,586.

Hydro One Brampton was directed on -- by the OEB in their letter of July 17th, 2012 that any utility that was not adopting IFRS should adopt the IFRS capitalization policies.

At the time, we identified three major items that were different between Canadian GAAP and IFRS.  And these items are, from the table, the depreciation expense variance.  That is actually made up of three items; there's three different pieces that are different between Canadian GAAP and IFRS.

The first piece is a change in a component versus group depreciation.  That is actually a give-back to customers of approximately $117,785.

Secondly, because we have a reduced capitalization base in IFRS, we actually have a lower depreciation for that piece of $26,256.

And finally, we adopted in-service dates for depreciation, where in GAAP we had a half-year rule.  And that amounted to $29,617.

So the total amount of that give-back to customers is 173,658.  That is the actual amount for 2013.  We were conservative and used the same amount as our forecast for 2014.

The other -- the second item that is different between Canadian GAAP and IFRS is the indirect overhead burdens that we are not allowed to capitalize under IFRS that would go to expense.  And the actual amount for 2013 was $1,789,454.  And we forecasted for 2014 the amount of 1,585,573.

And finally, the third item is a loss that we have when we retire assets from the field.  Under Canadian GAAP, with group accounting, we kept those assets in our rate base in our total capital.  Under IFRS we have to remove those assets from capital.  We use the depreciated deflated value, which gave us a loss of $1,143,060 actual for 2013, with the forecast of $739,671 for 2014.

There is one small item below.  And when we take a loss on an early retirement of an asset, if that item can be reused, we recover it into inventory.  And in 2013 we were able to recover just under $75,000 of those items, and so we reversed the loss.

MS. CACERES:  Now, if I can have you turn to IR Response 4 Energy Probe 36, part (b), how do the depreciation reductions for 2013 included in deferral account 1576 relate to 4 Energy Probe 36, part (b), where we see a difference in depreciation expense of 140,779 rounded up is presented between legacy CGAAP, depreciation approach, calculated based on the half year-rule as compared to the new modified IFRS depreciation approach calculated at the component level, based on a month in service approach of depreciation?

MS. DINIS:  At the time we received the IR we had not performed a study that broke down the difference in depreciation.

We knew it was $173,000 given back to the customer, but we did not have the breakdown into the three components.

So this was a very high-level estimate that we did.  We took the balance that we had, and of course it was a lower capital balance because of the indirect overheads, and then applied a half-year rule to that, which gave us a balance of $140,000.

We then had more time to prepare for today, and we realized that $140,000 is actually made up of two components.  It is actually made up of the half-year rule, and it is also based on the fact that we had componentization versus group accounting.

So the $140,000 -- if you recall, the 173 was made up of two pieces -- the 140,000 itself is made up of what would have been the 117,785 for component versus group depreciation, as well as the 29,617 that is based on the half-year versus the in-service.

MS. CACERES:  Were changes in depreciation due to fixed asset service lives included in this account?

MS. DINIS:  They were not.  When we did our 2011 cost of service application, we did a study of our depreciation rates and realized at the time that we had sufficient information to adopt them as part of the 2011 cost of service.  We realized at the time that by doing it then, we would be saving customers approximately $5 million in the depreciation expense a year.

So we adopted the depreciation in 2011 -- or, sorry, in 2012 and 2013, thereby saving customers a total of $10 million in depreciation expense.  Because we had adopted the new useful lives, we did not need to put any differences relating to useful lives in account 1576.

MS. CACERES:  Did the company record, Ms. Dinis, carrying costs to the deferral account 1576?

MS. DINIS:  No.  Based on the OEB's instructions, we did not.

MS. CACERES:  Now, I am just going to switch here from dealing with the amounts to the issue of disposition in account 1576, and direct my questions to Mr. Gapic.

Mr. Gapic, how much is the balance to be disposed of by the company pertaining to deferral account 1576?

MR. GAPIC:  The total to be disposed of in account 1576 is $6,622,303.  That is made up of two values.

The first is the values that were recorded to account 1576 that Ana Dinis had just spoke of, being the principal portion of $4,835,562.

In addition, as you can see on appendix 2E on the screen, we were required to show the differences between the former CGAAP balance that would be projected to the end of 2014, and also the projected based on the revised CGAAP.

This table basically shows the same numbers that were being provided in the previous table, of 4 million 835.

In addition, for disposition of this account, according to Board correspondence and a letter dated June 25th, 2013, distributors are also to apply weighted average cost of capital, a rate of return on the balances being disposed of, but not to record those in the account balance.

So for calculation of the amount for disposition, we took the 4,835,562, then applied five years of return, for a total of $1,786,740, which is being disposed of.  And rate riders were calculated on the basis of a five-year disposition period.

MS. CACERES:  Mr. Gapic, how is Hydro One Brampton proposing to dispose of the debit balance in account 1576?

MR. GAPIC:  Hydro One Brampton are proposing to dispose of this balance through a volumetric rate rider, and volumetric rate rider would be kilowatt-hour-based or kilowatt-based, depending on the customer class.  And the disposition period, as indicated in appendix 2EE, would be five years, is what the company is proposing to use as a disposition period.

Looking at a letter dated June 25th, 2013 as well from the Board, there's indication that utilities in the past had used the IRM period and had used four years for disposition, but given that we were going to renewed regulatory framework and there would be various options for disposition, that the Board would be looking at various alternatives and allow more flexibility in light that not everybody would be on a normal rate-setting cycle.

However, in Hydro One Brampton's case, we are going to continue on a normal rate-setting cycle, albeit it will be one year longer.  Previously it was four years.  Now it is five.  So Hydro One Brampton have used a five-year disposition cycle for the recovery of this amount.

Also, we have considered the implications and the impacts to customers and the implications/impacts to the distribution company, financial position as well, and also looked at other applications and identified that there are a number of other applications that had used five years' disposition as well.

So Hydro One Brampton aren't the first to use this in the current regime since 2013.  There are a number of filers, if I may read them out to you.  There's Fort Francis Power Corporation, Haldimand County Hydro Inc., Niagara-on-the-Lake Hydro, and Orangeville Hydro.  Each of these distributors applied for and were granted a five-year disposition period and also had a weighted average cost-of-capital return applied to their account balances similarly to what Hydro One Brampton has included as well, the only difference being in the other utilities' cases they were actually returning money to the ratepayers.  In Hydro One Brampton's case we're collecting money from the ratepayers, and we are probably -- Hydro One Brampton being the only case in Ontario that is actually collecting money back from customers.

As Ms. Ana Dinis said previously in her testimony, the amount that had been previously adjusted for depreciation due to service lives had been returned to customers a number of years ago, in 2011 and 2012, prior to the change that was mandated by the Board, so the customers actually received $10 million, approximately, in advance, and now it is basically -- what's left over is the disallowable overheads portion that the company is seeking disposition for.

MS. CACERES:  Thank you, Mr. Gapic.

Madam Chair, those are all my questions on account 1576.  The panel is available for cross-examination.

MS. SPOEL:  Thank you very much.

Is there an order agreed on for cross-examination on this matter?  Mr. Aiken or --


MR. AIKEN:  Yes.  I will be going first.

MS. SPOEL:  Going first?  Thank you.
Cross-Examination by Mr. Aiken:

MR. AIKEN:  So if you could turn to Exhibit 9, tab 4, Schedule 1, page 4.  And Mr. Gapic, you mentioned the amount of 6,622,303.  That's in table 2.

MR. GAPIC:  That's correct.

MR. AIKEN:  Am I correct that this number will change because of the changes in the capital expenditures that were agreed to?

MS. SPOEL:  Could you push your microphone on, Mr. Gapic?

MR. GAPIC:  The change would actually not be a result of the capital expenditures.  The change would be as a result of the weighted average cost of capital, and the details of that have been outlined in the settlement proposal, indicating that Hydro One Brampton would be making changes to the various components of the weighted average cost of capital, and that will be subject to the Board final proceeding and decision.

MR. AIKEN:  Were there not changes to the capital expenditures in the bridge year as part of the settlement agreement?

MR. GAPIC:  Yes.  There were changes to capital expenditures.

MR. AIKEN:  So that would be reflected in the closing balance of 2014 as well then?

MR. GAPIC:  That hasn't actually been considered.  That's not something that we've -- we haven't actually given any thought to.  The impact of depreciation, as we saw in the settlement proposal, is approximately 3- to $5,000, and due to the magnitude it hasn't been considered, and I would suggest that, due to its magnitude, that it not be considered.  It is immaterial.

MR. AIKEN:  Now, in Exhibit -- sorry, that same exhibit, but on page 3, it is a paragraph that starts at line 15.  You're proposing that -- the five-year period that you have talked about.  And I quote:

"The relevant amount is proposed to be recovered straight line over the five-year period 2015 to 2019 inclusive."

Then the key sentence says:

"This alliance, the recovery period with the proposed 2015 rate-setting cycle, takes into account customer bill sensitivities, as well as the financial requirements of the company."

So with respect to the customer bill sensitivities, am I correct that the proposed amounts work out to be about 24 cents per month for a residential customer consuming 800 kilowatt-hours per month and about $4.50 per month for a large GS under 50?

MR. GAPIC:  Subject to check.  I don't have that information handy, but that sounds reasonable.

MR. AIKEN:  Okay.  Because I am sure I have taken those numbers from appendix 2-W in the settlement agreement, so subject to check, okay.

Would you also take subject to check that this represents an increase in their bill of .2 percent?  And that this figure generally applies to all rate classes?  Again, subject to check?

MR. GAPIC:  Generally would affect all rate classes.  There would be an impact, but, yes, subject to check.  I believe that it saw a slightly larger impact, but that seems close.

MR. AIKEN:  Now, what do you mean by "the financial requirements of the company"?  The second part of that sentence.

MR. GAPIC:  Basically, these are words taken right out of the Board's letter dated June the 25th, 2013, that actually provides for the utility to consider its implications due to, I guess, the return period, and in the case of Brampton, due to the assets that the overhead capitalization relate to, they're long-lived assets, that the company would have returned -- would have earned a return for a longer period of time over many years had this change not been made.

So hence by looking at the implications to the company's financial situation, it was to the company's decision that it made more sense to dispose of the value over a longer period than a shorter period of time, and given that we haven't seen any disposition periods go beyond the rate-setting cycle, five years was selected.

MR. AIKEN:  When you say "disposed of", you mean collect from ratepayers?

MR. GAPIC:  In this case.  Disposition could be either/or.  It is a balance that is being disposed of.

MR. AIKEN:  I take it also that the financial requirements of the company are such that you don't need this money recovered from ratepayers over a shorter period of time?

MR. GAPIC:  Five years was selected as in part due to the availability of the working capital -- weighted average cost of capital being returned to the company as well.

The company had returned 5 to 10 -- or over $5 million a year in prior years in relation to the change in depreciation expense before, and this allows the company to recoup some of those funds.

MR. AIKEN:  But my question was, you don't need to recoup those funds faster than the five years you're proposing?

MR. GAPIC:  No.

MR. AIKEN:  Okay.  Then going to page 4 of the evidence again, you come up with a figure of roughly $357,000 per year as the weighted average cost of capital, and over five years that is the $1.8 million.

My question is, have you looked at this recovery from the point of view of what is best for ratepayers, in terms of the total they're going to be paying over the life of this account?

MR. GAPIC:  I think the answer to that is actually related to the reduction that Hydro One Brampton had in rates in the past.  I think both elements of the re-reduction due to depreciation service lives that were changed in 2011 have to be factored in and looked at together.

In Brampton's case, unlike other utilities, we're collecting monies, but we'd actually returned $10 million in the past.  If you actually net those two values together there is an overall return to customers that had been done far in advance of the time period that we're asking for disposition of this recovery.

MR. AIKEN:  My understanding, the change in 2011 depreciation rates was a result of a study you did in preparation for IFRS, and then when you didn't go to IFRS you decided to leave those new rates in place.

MR. GAPIC:  Yes.

MR. AIKEN:  And did you have any input from your auditors as to whether you were required to use those new depreciation rates once you had them from the study that you did? 

MR. GAPIC:  I can't speak to that, but because we knew we had the values and because we had more accurate values, we did use them. 

MR. AIKEN:  Have you done any sort of net present value analysis of your five year proposal compared to a three-year recovery period? 

MR. GAPIC:  We hadn't done a net present value analysis.

We had looked at the cash flow ramifications.

Also looked at how other utilities basically disposed of their values.  In most cases, they're returning monies.  In our case, we're collecting monies.

MR. AIKEN:  Could you provide a net present value of the cost to ratepayers of the five-year recovery proposal, using a discount rate equal to your weighted average cost of capital, and then do the same net present value calculation assuming a three-year recovery period? 

MR. GAPIC:  I don't see the relevance of that, because I think we've explained why we use the five-year period.  And if anything, the period probably could have been longer, because these are for long-lived assets.

But we were consistent with the filing requirements, that the Board had basically approved four-year periods in the past.  We're not doing anything unusual that would require any special analysis.

MR. AIKEN:  So is it your position that the cost to ratepayers is not relevant? 

MR. GAPIC:  It is relevant. 

MR. AIKEN:  Then can you provide the net present value calculation over five and three years? 

MS. SPOEL:  Mr. Aiken, it is rather late in the day to be asking for that kind of information.  You've had a lengthy interrogatory and discovery process, technical -- I don't know if there was a technical conference in this case or not, but settlement discussions, all kinds of things.

If you wanted that information, which seems to me to require a considerable amount of work, could you not have asked for this earlier? 

MR. AIKEN:  Certainly.  I am prepared to provide it in argument.  It is actually a simple calculation.

MS. SPOEL:  Well...

MS. CACERES:  Well, Madam Chair, Mr. Gapic has answered, and I believe his answer is no to that undertaking. 

MR. AIKEN:  Okay.  If we move to appendix 2 --


MS. SPOEL:  Mr. Aiken, if you have the numbers, you can put them to the witness if you want, if you have already done the calculation.  But I am not going to entertain an interrogatory or a question of this sort at this stage.

MR. AIKEN:  No, I haven't done the calculation, but it's a matter of entering ten different numbers in a little spreadsheet. 

So moving on to appendix 2-EE, in Exhibit 9, tab 4, schedule 1, I take it -- to ensure that the record is complete in this case -- that Brampton has filed somewhere in its evidence the continuity schedules that show the calculation of the PP&E values under the former CGAAP, which are the numbers in the top half of the table.

I just couldn't find them.  Could you refer to me where they are in the evidence?

MR. GAPIC:  This information wasn't provided in the evidence, and it wasn't asked for in interrogatories. 

The information that we provided was consistent with what we believe the filing requirements to be.  There were no requirements in the filing requirements that indicated that kind of information would be provided.  There were no questions as to the magnitude or dollar quantum of account 1576 during the interrogatory process either. 

MR. AIKEN:  Okay.  Now, correct me if I'm wrong, but you used the half-year rule for depreciation expense in your last cost of service application, and for the actual calculation for 2011 and 2012, and for the 2014 bridge year. 

But on an actual basis for 2013, you have used the monthly in-service methodology; is that correct? 

MR. GAPIC:  That's correct. 

MR. AIKEN:  And you made that change because it was required under IFRS? 

MR. GAPIC:  That's correct.

MR. AIKEN:  Okay.  Then in the calculation of the amounts included in account 1576, at the end of 2014 -- and I am back looking at appendix 2-EE -- in the bottom half of the schedule, which is under the revised CGAAP, does the net depreciation shown for 2013 of 11,938,247 reflect the in-service methodology? 

MR. GAPIC:  Yes, it does.  It reflects that the depreciation expense was lower under the in-service methodology.  And we actually showed a reduction to the recoverable amount from customers. 

MR. AIKEN:  And then the figure for 2014 of 12,038,606, does that reflect the half-year methodology? 

MR. GAPIC:  Yes, it does.  Sorry, let me try that again.

The depreciation that was used, as Ms. Dinis indicated in earlier evidence, the same value dollar quantum was used for depreciation adjustments.  So because of the same values used as an estimate, I guess you could imply (sic) that it was based on a month in-service, not half-year as I just indicated. 

MR. AIKEN:  Well, then is this number not consistent with your continuity schedules for PP&E, which would have used the half-year rule? 

MR. GAPIC:  For PP&E, we used the half-year rule for 2015 test year.

In relation to 2014, I don't have the values in front of me, but we may have used the half-year rule for the calculation of the continuity.

However, for booking purposes, what we used to this particular account was indeed consistent with the values from '13, which were based on the month in-service. 

MR. AIKEN:  Then for the depreciation numbers in the top half of appendix 2-EE, under the former CGAAP, am I correct that the 2013 and '14 figures reflect the half-year methodology that would have been in place if you had not gone to IFRS?

MR. GAPIC:  One moment.  I will consult with my peers. 

[Witness panel confers] 

MR. GAPIC:  I just consulted.  Yes, the values from 2013 and '14 under the former CGAAP were based on half-year rule. 

MR. AIKEN:  Okay.  Thank you.  Those are my questions.

MS. SPOEL:  Thank you, Mr. Aiken.

Mr. Rubenstein, do you have questions on this topic? 
Cross-Examination by Mr. Rubenstein:

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  I just have one question, just as a follow-up to what Mr. Aiken said.

I was wondering if you can turn to 4 Energy Probe 36.  And I am looking at the answer to part number (b).  Sorry, I am looking at the answer to part number (a). 

Is it my understanding that for the purposes of the account for -- for 2014, you used the half-year rule?  Or is it the in-service?

I just wasn't clear from Mr. Aiken's question what your answer was on that. 

MR. GAPIC:  In the calculations, my understanding is we did use the half-year rule. 

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  All right.  Thank you very much.  That's my question. 

MS. SPOEL:  Mr. Janigan, have you any questions on account 1576? 

MR. JANIGAN:  I have no questions for this panel, Madam Chair.

MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.

Ms. Lea, have you? 

MS. LEA:  I do have a couple of questions.  Yes, please. 
Cross-Examination by Ms. Lea: 

MS. LEA:  Mr. Gapic, I think you said that you have given an explanation as to why a five-year disposition period was chosen.  Did you consider any other disposition periods when you were coming forward with this application? 

MR. GAPIC:  To be honest, no.  When we looked at the disposition periods, we looked at the financial needs of the company.  We looked at the direction provided by the Board in the letter of June 25th, 2013. 

We understood there was flexibility, and we selected the approach that we felt was most closely tied into the life of the fixed assets that they related to. 

MS. LEA:  Did you calculate what amount would be the amount you would have to collect from customers, were a three-year period chosen? 

MR. GAPIC:  I didn't calculate it, but I knew what it would be.  Effectively, it would have a lower return component of it. 

MS. LEA:  Yes.  If it's not -- if it's not a difficult or a time-consuming calculation, would you be willing to provide that number as to what you would actually collect from ratepayers, were a three-year disposition period chosen? 

MR. GAPIC:  Yes. 

MS. LEA:  And can you do that now, or do you wish to take an undertaking? 

MR. GAPIC:  I can do that right now. 

MS. LEA:  Thank you. 

MR. GAPIC:  Give me a moment, please.

MS. LEA:  Don't feel you have to calculate on the stand.  I don't want to put you under that kind of pressure. 

MR. GAPIC:  We will do the calculation later. 

MS. CACERES:  We can it as an undertaking, counsel.

MS. LEA:  Thank you, I appreciate that.

If that is acceptable, Madam Chair -- I heard your ruling on the other matter, but I was hoping that this would be a minimum calculation.

MS. SPOEL:  I think you have the answer from the witness that it is easy enough to do.

MS. LEA:  All right.  So Undertaking J1.1 would be to provide the amount to be recovered from ratepayers were a three-year period chosen for the disposition of the account. 
UNDERTAKING NO. J1.1:  TO PROVIDE THE AMOUNT TO BE RECOVERED FROM RATEPAYERS WERE A THREE-YEAR PERIOD CHOSEN FOR THE DISPOSITION OF THE ACCOUNT; ALSO, THE BILL IMPACT ON THE TYPICAL RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMER ONLY.

MS. LEA:  And I understand that the bill impact over a five-year period is about 24 cents per month for a residential customer?

MR. GAPIC:  Subject to check, that is what Mr. Aiken said, correct.

MS. LEA:  Okay.  And do you anticipate it would be a higher amount were a three-year disposition period chosen?

MR. GAPIC:  It would be a lower amount if the three-year disposition period were chosen.

MS. LEA:  Okay.  And is it difficult to tell us how much lower?  Again, I don't want to go too far with this.

MR. GAPIC:  Let me consult with my peers.

MS. LEA:  Thank you.

[Witness panel confers]


MR. GAPIC:  Yes.  This could be calculated readily.  We could take an undertaking for that.

MS. LEA:  If it is all right with you, we will put it under the same undertaking number.  J1.1 then would be the amount to be recovered from ratepayers under a three-year disposition period, and the bill impact on the typical residential customer only, just that class, just as an indicator, please.

MR. GAPIC:  Okay.

MS. LEA:  Now, on the other side of the equation, would Hydro One Brampton be adversely affected either financially or operationally if a three-year period were chosen?

[Witness panel confers]


MR. GAPIC:  No.  The company wouldn't be adversely affected if a three-year period was chosen.

MS. LEA:  But I understand your position to be that, as you have already returned money to ratepayers, the fairest thing for the utility and its customers is a five-year disposition period.

MR. GAPIC:  That's the way we looked at it when we determined what period to use.

MS. LEA:  Thank you.  Those are my questions.

MS. SPOEL:  Thank you, Ms. Lea.

Do you have any re-examination?

MS. CACERES:  No, I do not.

MS. SPOEL:  The panel has no questions on this topic.

So I understand one of the witnesses wanted to be excused following this issue, and that would be fine.

MS. CACERES:  Yes, Madam Chair.  That would be Ms. Dinis.

MS. SPOEL:  Thank you very much.  You are free to go.

[Ms. Dinis withdraws from witness panel]


MS. SPOEL:  Yes, if you want to proceed now with the remainder of your examination in-chief, that would be great.

MS. CACERES:  Yes, Madam Chair.  Would the panel like to hear it issue by issue as we just did, starting off with working capital, or just dealing with the examination in-chief?

MS. SPOEL:  It is entirely up to you.

MS. CACERES:  Okay, thank you.
HYDRO ONE BRAMPTON NETWORKS INC. - PANEL 2


Dan Gapic, Previously Affirmed.


Marc Villett, Previously Affirmed.
Examination-In-Chief by Ms. Caceres:

MS. CACERES:  Now, the second issue I am going to be turning to is the load forecast issue and the weather normalization methodology.

How did Hydro One Brampton perform weather normalization in its 2015 load forecast?

MR. GAPIC:  In its 2015 load forecast, Hydro One Brampton used ten years of heating degree data, cooling degree data, to calculate the normalized weather based on an average calculation per month in a 12-month period.

MS. CACERES:  And why did Hydro One Brampton select ten years of traditional -- sorry, ten years of historic heating degree days, cooling degree days data, rather than some other period when it did its weather normalization in its regression analysis?

MR. GAPIC:  Hydro One Brampton selected ten years as it was closely -- the most closely related to the period of history that the historical data for purchased kilowatt-hours was used.

We used ten years of historical data for purchased kilowatt-hours, and we basically matched and used ten years of data to calculate the weather normalization data.

That was not unlike any other utility.  Many utilities in the province had used ten years as well.  In fact, when we took a look at, out of these utilities listed in the document 6 that we have on the screen, approximately, I think 11 out of 14, I believe, the utilities there used a ten-year average.

So Hydro One Brampton wasn't using something that was so different that it would be something that would be considered out of the norm.

Also, Hydro One Brampton did do the calculations as required in the filing requirements to determine what the impact would be if a 20-year average data was used in its calculation for weather normalization as well.  And the difference was not very materially different.

MS. CACERES:  And just for clarity of the record, Mr. Gapic, when you're referring to document 6, are you referring to Exhibit 1.1, the method used for normal weather forecasts in Hydro One Brampton's brief?

MR. GAPIC:  Yes.  The method used -- yeah, page 6 of 11 method used for normal weather forecast by other local distribution companies from '13 to '14 cost-of-service applications.

MS. CACERES:  And what is the impact to Hydro One Brampton's load forecast if 20 years of historical HDD CDD data is used for weather normalization based on the averaging approach, rather than ten years?

MR. GAPIC:  The impact was negligible.  Approximately 5.5 gigawatt hours.  And basically immaterial from the whole scheme of things.  I think the total dollar effect was, I think, a revenue requirement that was insignificant, I think in the tens of thousands of dollars.

In fact, the revenue deficiency would have probably gone up a little bit.  It actually would have been slightly in the favour of customers to use the ten-year, which is what we used.

MS. CACERES:  And why did Hydro One Brampton average its monthly HDD CDD data over the span of the ten years of historical data rather than trend the data using the Excel trend function?

MR. GAPIC:  I can point you to one of the documents in the additional information submitted.  Firstly, we did it because other utilities in the province did it, and that is a standard norm.  That is the way the weather normalization was done by distributors in Ontario.

In fact, we did some further enquiring, and for other utilities and distributors within North America there were actually -- the weather normalization approach based on averages is considered the norm as well.

This excerpt here basically indicates that in the second sentence of the first bullet:

"Normal weather represents an expected weather condition and is typically represented by an average."

In this particular report there is no reference to a trending approach.  It's purely the average.

Also, on page 8 of this particular document the results of an Itron study that were made available, there was basically a survey done.  135 respondents replied.  Of those, 80 were distribution, and I think there is only a couple of those were actually gas distribution.  The majority were electric distribution.  And you can see that the number of years used by other distributors in North America varied in terms of the number of years of data used.

What you can see is there was quite a large increase in number of distributors that used ten years.  In the previous survey in 2006, 16 percent of the distributors used ten years to normalize their data.  In the 2013 survey that went up to 28 percent.  So a fairly substantial increase, which is actually a larger increase than the decrease of distributors that dropped from using 30 years of historical data to another period.

So it was 43 percent of distributors previously used 30 years, dropped down to 33 percent.

MS. CACERES:  Mr. Gapic, is Hydro One Brampton aware of any other distributors in either Ontario or North America who use trended historical data for weather normalization?

MR. GAPIC:  Hydro One Brampton is not aware of any electricity distributor that uses anything but an average approach to calculate weather normalization data.

MS. CACERES:  Mr. Gapic, which approach to weather normalization provides the forecast that is closer to the 2014 August year-to-date actual purchased kilowatt per hour, the 20-year trending weather normalization approach or the ten-year average weather normalization approach?

MR. GAPIC:  The ten-year average weather normalization approach provides a forecast that is closer to the actual results year-to-date, 2014 to date, and we will show you the slide.  There is a graph.

This particular graph shows that by using the ten-year averaging methodology there's actually less variance between the forecasted volumes for the eight-month period of 2014, as compared to the 20-year trended approach, which actually provides a higher forecast, which would create a larger variance.

MS. CACERES:  And which approach to weather normalization provides a more accurate forecast of HDD CDD data for January to September 2014, the 20-year trending weather normalization approach or the 10-year average weather normalization approach?

MR. GAPIC:  The 10-year averaging normalization provides also better historical -– or better forecasting data for heating degree-days and cooling degree-days.

Looking at this graph in Exhibit -- or, sorry, in Document 9, indicating the cooling degree days from January to September, you can see the variance between the actual cooling degree-days for that period.  There's actually a larger variance when using the 20-year trend, which provides a forecast that would be greater than the approach that Hydro One Brampton used in its 2015 cost of service load forecast.

And the same goes for heating degree-days, just to provide the additional data, a larger variance in data for using 20-year trended versus 10-year average.

MS. CACERES:  Thank you, Mr. Gapic.

Now, with respect to the working capital allowance issue, which is the remaining issue for today's hearing, Mr. Villett, on what basis did Hydro One Brampton file its working capital evidence?

MR. VILLETT:  Hydro One Brampton filed its working capital evidence consistent with the OEB Filing Guidelines, in section 2.5.1.3 of the OEB Filing Guidelines for Electricity Distribution Rate Applications.

And those Filing Guidelines provide for two options with respect to working capital.  One is to file a lead/lag study, and the second is to select a 13 percent allowance approach.

Hydro One Brampton selected the 13 percent allowance approach.

MS. CACERES:  And Mr. Villett, why should the Ontario Energy Board accept Hydro One Brampton's use of the 13 percent working capital allowance?

MR. VILLETT:  Hydro One Brampton, as I mentioned, followed the OEB guidelines with respect to working capital.

And the OEB has accepted the 13 percent allowance approach in a number of recent 2014 decisions, including Burlington Hydro, Oakville Hydro, Cambridge and North Dumfries Hydro, Kitchener-Wilmot Hydro, Cooperative Hydro Embrun, Fort Frances Power and Hydro Hawkesbury.

MS. CACERES:  And has Hydro One Brampton conducted a lead/lag study?

MR. VILLETT:  No.  Hydro One Brampton was not required to conduct a lead/lag study as part of the OEB's filing guidelines, nor were we required to conduct a lead/lag study as part of any previous decision or direction from the Board.

MS. CACERES:  And does Hydro One Brampton know its actual working requirements?

MR. VILLETT:  Hydro One Brampton has followed the OEB's filing guidelines and elected to use the 13 percent allowance approach.  And we did not complete a lead/lag study.  Therefore we don't know what our working capital would be under a lead/lag study approach.

MS. CACERES:  And how long has the utility been on a monthly billing system?

MR. VILLETT:  Hydro One Brampton's been on monthly billing for at least 30 years.

Up until the year 2000, customers were billed monthly and meters were read quarterly.  So there would be a couple of months of estimates that would be trued up every quarter.

And then in the year 2000, Hydro One Brampton started reading all of their meters on a monthly basis, and we continue to bill our customers on a monthly basis.

MS. CACERES:  Should the working capital amount be adjusted to reflect the monthly billing?

MR. VILLETT:  No.  The working capital guidelines are already applicable to monthly billing utilities.  The working capital guidelines issued by the OEB do not differentiate between the billing frequencies of utilities.  They don't have different rates for bimonthly versus monthly utilities.

And I would like to also point to some information in Exhibit 4-1.1, that we filed.  I am going to refer to Document 1, page 1.

And this is from the draft Report of the Board on Electricity and Natural Gas Distributors Residential Customer Billing Practices.  And I am looking at section 3.1.2, "Results of electricity distributors."

And if you look at the second paragraph, it states:

"The survey results show that 53 out of 72 electricity distributors provide monthly billing to their non-seasonal customers."

That is approximately 74 percent of utilities that are billing their customers monthly.  Therefore the majority of utilities that would be using the 13 percent allowance approach in the OEB Filing Guidelines are already billing their customers on a monthly basis.

I would also like to point out that the Board recently approved use of the 13 percent working capital allowance for utilities that bill their customers on a monthly basis, and it approved it in the decisions for Cooperative Hydro Embrun, Fort Frances Power and Hydro Hawkesbury.

MS. CACERES:  Are there any concerns with making an adjustment to the current 13 percent working capital allowance used by Hydro One Brampton?

MR. VILLETT:  Yes.  There are a number of concerns with making such an adjustment.

The operations of each utility are different, and therefore the leads and lags of each utility are unique.  And we don't believe it is appropriate to adjust one element of a utility's expense and revenue pattern without looking at the entire picture.

And the OEB has expressed a similar view in recent cases for Fort Frances and Hydro Hawkesbury.  In those decisions, the OEB stated:

"The Board does not consider it appropriate to adopt the results of a lead/lag study from another utility without a thorough analysis concluding the two utilities are comparable."

And I would once again like to refer to Exhibit 4-1.1.  And this time I am going to refer to Document 2, which is "Lead/lag comparison amongst LDCs."

Now, what this table shows is the results of various lead/lag studies that have been filed with the Board for other utilities.

And as you can see here, if we look at the "OM&A" column, for example, there are significant variances in the leads for the same type of expense that are coming out of these various lead/lag studies.

In the case of OM&A expenses, there's a difference of 26.56 days between these various studies.  You've got Horizon at 7.3 days, Toronto Hydro at 33.86.

If you look at the "PILs" column, the variation between these -- between the results of these studies is even greater.  It is 177.32 days.

And in interest expense, the variation between utilities is 190 days.

If I can refer to Document 3, this is a similar table but it looks at the retail revenue lag comparison, again from the various lead/lag studies that have been filed.  And you will see there's significant variances again in items such as the billing and collection lag.

So because these studies are generating significantly different results, depending on the utility, we do not feel that it is appropriate for the Board to apply the results of another utility's lead/lag study to Hydro One Brampton.

MS. CACERES:  Thank you, Mr. Villett.

Is Hydro One Brampton supportive of an industry-wide review of the current 13 percent working capital allowance?

MR. VILLETT:  Yes.  If the Board was to conduct such a review, we would be supportive of that type of review of working capital.

But we think it needs to look at more than just the percentage.  For example, a key component of the working capital calculation is the cost of power.

When a utility is under the IRM mechanism for the 4th Generation, our rates are set in the cost of service year.  They are adjusted modestly for IRM increases.

However, when you look at an element like cost of power, according to the Ministry of Energy's latest 2013 long-term energy report, cost of power is expected to increase by 16.9 percent over the next five years.

So the working capital amount that is established in year 1 of the cost of service, it is not sufficient to -- it's not sufficient over that full five-year period, because the cost of power is growing at a much more significant rate than the IRM adjustments.

So we believe that any review of working capital should take that type of thing into consideration.

MS. CACERES:  Could you please explain further and illustrate how an increase in the cost of power impacts working capital over an IRM period?

MR. VILLETT:  Yes.  If I, once again, could refer to Exhibit 4, 1.1.  This time I will refer to document 4.

What this table attempts to do is isolate the impact of the increase in working capital over a five-year period.  So we've held distribution expenses flat over the five-year period so we can isolate the impact of cost of power.

And what we have also done -- I mentioned the Ministry of Energy is forecasting a 16.9 percent increase in cost of power.  We will receive some IRM increases over the five years that will help to offset part of that.

So the net impact that we're forecasting in this table is 10 percent, so we believe cost of power will be 10 percent higher than what we will receive in the IRM adjustments.

So if you look at the second-last line, shortfall in working capital allowance, you can see it is 1.5 million in 2016 and then moves to 6,277,793 by 2019.  And in the last line you will see how that impacts a working capital percentage.

If we start with the allowed working capital of 13 percent, these costs of power increases steadily erode that to 11.84 percent by 2019.

MS. CACERES:  Thank you, Mr. Villett.

Those are all my questions for the panel, Madam Chair.  They're open for cross-examination.

MS. LEA:  Just one item for the record, please.  I think where Mr. Villett was referring to Exhibit 4, 1.1, it is actually Exhibit K1.1, which was the exhibit number I gave today.  It is probably just that it is written and looks like a 4, but it is K1.1, so that might clarify things slightly on the record.

MS. SPOEL:  I am going to suggest, since we were going to break at 11:45 anyway, that we perhaps just leave the start of the cross-examination until we resume promptly at 2:15.

It's not our plan to take a break this afternoon, given that we have a relatively short day, assuming that is acceptable with the court reporter.  Thank you.  So we will resume here at 2:15.

Mr. Janigan, I think you are going first?

MR. JANIGAN:  I am, Madam Chair.

MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.
--- Luncheon recess at 11:39 a.m.

--- Upon resuming at 2:21 p.m.


MS. SPOEL:  Please be seated. 


Are there any preliminary matters before we start?  No?  Very well.


Mr. Janigan, I think you were going to start with cross-examination.
Cross-Examination by Mr. Janigan:

MR. JANIGAN:  Yes.  Thank you, Madam Chair. 


Panel, as I recall from your exchange with your counsel this morning with respect to the issue of working capital allowance, I believe, Mr. Villett, you indicated that you believe that it was important that the Board did not change the default value of 13 percent for the working capital allowance based on other utilities' lead/lag studies, because, as I understand it, you indicated that the operations of each utility are different.  Therefore the leads and lags of each utility are unique.  We don't believe it is appropriate to adjust one element of a utility's expense and revenue pattern without looking at the entire picture.


Have I got that correct? 


MR. VILLETT:  Yes. 


MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  Now, do you know how the default value was arrived at by the Board? 


MR. VILLETT:  No, I do not. 


MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  If you turn up tab 7 of my compendium -- and I wonder if I could have that marked as an exhibit, Madam Chair.


MS. SPOEL:  Yes.


MS. LEA:  Yes.  I think that would be a good idea for identification.  K1.3.  Is there any material in here, Mr. Janigan, that is not on this record already that we need to note? 


MR. JANIGAN:  I believe Mr. Shepherd's letter at tab 7 is not on the record at the moment. 

EXHIBIT NO. K1.3:  VECC CROSS-EXAMINATION COMPENDIUM.


MS. LEA:  Thank you.  Did the Board's response to that letter -- is it included?  Oh, only part of the letter from Mr. Shepherd is included?


MR. JANIGAN:  That's correct.


MS. LEA:  And the Board's response to that letter is not included?  I'm not saying it should have been; I am just being clear.  Okay? 


MR. JANIGAN:  That's correct.


MS. LEA:  Thank you. 


MR. JANIGAN:  On page 2 of that correspondence, the --


MS. LEA:  Sorry, if I didn't say so, it is K1.3.  Thank you.  My apologies.  I think I actually didn't give you a number.


MR. JANIGAN:  On page 3 in Mr. Shepherd's letter, he notes that -- some information from Navigant that was contained in EB-2013-0416, and notes that there were four working capital allowance studies that the Board relied upon in 2012.  These were Hydro One Networks, Toronto Hydro, Horizon Utilities and Hydro Ottawa.


Do you have any reason to doubt that those were the four studies that were relied upon?


MS. CACERES:  Objection.  I don't think that this witness can speak as to what the Board relied upon in terms of the reference that counsel is making. 


MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  Well, Madam Chair, what we have established here is that the witness has indicated that we should not rely upon lead/lag studies from other utilities in order to change the default values.

MS. SPOEL:  Mr. Janigan, he has already testified that he is not aware of how the Board did set the default values.  So I am not sure how far you're going to get.  If he is not aware of how it was set, how could he possibly be aware of what utilities' information was taken into account?


MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  Would you agree with me, Mr. -- is it Villet or Villett?


MR. VILLETT:  It is Villett.


MR. JANIGAN:  Would you agree with me, Mr. Villett, it is important that the lead/lag studies the Board relied upon be accurate and reflective of the conditions of Hydro One Brampton, in order to be used for the default value? 


MR. VILLETT:  As I said before, how the default value was determined.  I don't know what studies were relied on.  So I can't really comment whether that's what they did, looked at studies, or used some other criteria to come up with the default value.


MR. JANIGAN:  Would you agree with me if default studies -- if studies were used to create the default value and information came forward that appears to indicate that they should be corrected, that correction should be reflected in the default value that is used for Hydro One Brampton? 


MS. CACERES:  Objection.  That calls for speculation.  It is a hypothesis. 


MR. JANIGAN:  Well, yes, it is a hypoth -- it is a hypothetical question.  But it goes to the root of Brampton's whole argument in this case, that they're entitled to rely upon the default value without consideration of what might have occurred to change that default value in the interim.


MS. SPOEL:  I think it is a reasonable question.  Mr. Villett may or may not have the information he requires to provide a useful answer, but I think it is a reasonable question for Mr. Janigan to ask. 


MR. VILLETT:  Sorry, could you just repeat it once more? 


MR. JANIGAN:  Would you agree that in the event that new information came forward that affected the calculation of the working capital allowance upon which the default value was based, that that correction should be reflected on a going-forward basis, with respect to the setting of working capital allowance for Hydro One Brampton?


MS. SPOEL:  Mr. Janigan, I don't think that is the question you asked the first time around. 


MR. JANIGAN:  I wonder if it could be -- Madam Chair, if you have a better record of that question than I do. 


MS. SPOEL:  I do, because I have a transcript in front of me.


MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  I would be content that -- if that question be put.


MS. SPOEL:  The question that you asked was -- the question according to the not-yet necessarily completed transcript -- now I can't get it. 


Are you able to read it back?


[Question read back]


[Witness panel confers] 


MR. VILLETT:  Working capital is an issue that affects all utilities, not -- it's not unique to Hydro One Brampton.  And the Board's guidance under section 2.5.1.3 does affect all utilities.  So if there were to be changes to that guidance, we believe that it should be applicable to all utilities, and not just specifically to the case of Hydro One Brampton. 


MR. JANIGAN:  And you -- once again, as I recall, you simply applied the 13 percent.  You don't know how they arrived at that figure.  And you haven't done any studies to determine what is the size of working capital that you require? 


MR. VILLETT:  Yes.  We have used the 13 percent as allowed under the OEB guidelines, and we have not conducted our own lead/lag study. 


MR. JANIGAN:  How do you know whether or not the 13 percent is sufficient for working capital allowance? 


MR. VILLETT:  We don't have any information to say it should be higher or lower than 13 percent, because we did not do a lead/lag study.


MR. JANIGAN:  And as I understand from your exchange with counsel this morning, you expressed concern about any change in the working capital allowance based on the, if I've got the correct figure, is 13.9 percent increase in the cost of power that was predicted by the Minister of Energy in 2013?  Am I correct on that?


MR. VILLETT:  I believe that the reference was 16.9 percent.


MR. JANIGAN:  I'm sorry.  16.9 percent.


MR. VILLETT:  And the point I was trying to make is that, if the Board is going to look at the working capital issue, it should look at all aspects of the issue and not just selective components.


MR. JANIGAN:  Well, this 16.9 percent came out in 2013, did it not?


MR. VILLETT:  Yes, that's my understanding.


MR. JANIGAN:  And the 13 percent default working capital allowance came out in 2012.  Is that correct?


MR. VILLETT:  Yes.


MR. JANIGAN:  And this didn't alarm Hydro One Brampton enough to potentially change or make efforts to have the working capital allowance changed?  Do a lead/lag study of your own?


[Witness panel confers]

MR. VILLETT:  No, we didn't consider filing our own lead/lag on that issue alone.


MR. JANIGAN:  And I take it that you would agree with me that that cost-of-power increase predicted by the Minister of Energy affects all distribution utilities across Ontario?


MR. VILLETT:  Yes.


MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  Now, if you believe the lead/lag -- if you believe that the default value was insufficient to recover a working capital allowance for Hydro One Brampton, you had the option of doing a lead/lag study to correct that, had you not?


MR. VILLETT:  Yes, we did.


MR. JANIGAN:  And if other stakeholders in other circumstances arise that appear to indicate that the working capital allowance that you have been awarded is too generous, what is the options that they can have in order to have this changed?


MS. CACERES:  Objection.  This witness can't speak to what the options are going to be for other utilities.


MR. JANIGAN:  Well, it's not for other utilities.  It is for other stakeholders.


MS. CACERES:  The objection that I am trying to raise is that the witness is being asked to speculate on what the options may be arising from any determination by the OEB with respect to the working capital allowance.


MR. JANIGAN:  Yes.


MS. CACERES:  He's asking for speculation.


MR. JANIGAN:  Counsel can answer this then.  Is it the position of Hydro One Brampton that the Board must apply the default allowance in this -- default working capital allowance in this proceeding?  Or are the stakeholders entitled to bring evidence to have it set aside?


MS. CACERES:  It is a factor that the Board should consider, but the Board obviously has discretion in terms of determining what it will decide with respect to the working capital allowance.


MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  Now, in tab 3 of my compendium, you indicate that you did not review any other utilities' lead/lag studies in coming to the conclusion that the working capital allowance should be 13 percent; is that correct?


MR. VILLETT:  Yes.


MR. JANIGAN:  And in terms of the impact of each 100 basis points of the working capital allowance, my understanding is 100 basis points is approximately equal to $460,000; is that correct?


MR. VILLETT:  I believe in the first page of Energy Probe it refers to 435,000, subject to check.


MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  That is the value for 100 basis points.


And as I understand it, Hydro One Brampton has been a monthly biller since 2000?


MR. VILLETT:  No.  We've actually been billing customers monthly for more than 30 years.  In 2000 we started reading meters monthly, but we had been sending monthly bills with estimates prior to that.


MR. JANIGAN:  Thank you for that correction.


And 19 percent of the company's customers are enrolled in e-billing; is that correct?


MR. VILLETT:  Yes.


MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  Would you agree that the decision to bill monthly as opposed to bimonthly influences the amount of working capital allowance required?


MR. VILLETT:  Yes, it's one of several factors that influences working capital.


MR. JANIGAN:  And I would assume that e-billing also has an effect on working capital?


MR. VILLETT:  I don't think it would.  E-billing is -- we're electronically sending our customers a bill versus sending it through the mail.  The actual due date of the invoice does not change because we send an e-bill.


MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  And does that not reduce the -- your revenue requirement to some extent?


MR. VILLETT:  In what way?


MR. JANIGAN:  That it, for example, it would remove some postal costs and some other follow-up that may be associated with postal bills.


[Witness panel confers]

MR. VILLETT:  There would be lower costs as we convert customers to e-billing, lower printing and postage costs.


MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.


MR. VILLETT:  But we have settled the OM&A matter.


MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  Can you point out to me in your exhibit any utility that bills customers monthly that has done a lead/lag study that shows it needs 13 percent or higher working capital allowance?


MR. VILLETT:  There are no utilities on that particular table that bill monthly with a working capital above 13 percent. 


MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  And clearly there are some others that had agreed to lower their working capital allowance that are monthly billers like you have listed, Orangeville and Niagara-on-the-Lake and Haldimand, for example.


MR. VILLETT:  My understanding is that any trade-offs that are part of a settlement agreement shouldn't prejudice -- I mean, there's various trade-offs that are made during settlements, so the fact that another utility dropped from 13 percent, I don't know that that's relevant to whether 13 percent is appropriate.


MR. JANIGAN:  The end result, though, was they had a lower working capital allowance.


MR. VILLETT:  If they settled for lower, then, yes.


MR. JANIGAN:  And the Board approved it.


MS. CACERES:  Objection.  I mean, I think if the Board approved it, it speaks for itself.  Do we really need this witness to answer that?


MR. JANIGAN:  No, I just asked him if the Board approved it.


MR. VILLETT:  Which particular case?


MR. JANIGAN:  Orangeville, Niagara-on-the-Lake, Haldimand.  Would you agree with me that they did, subject to check?


MR. VILLETT:  Yes, my -– yes, they did approve them, but as I said, there were other trade-offs that we're not aware of as part of the settlement process. 


MR. JANIGAN:  Now, we have included in our compendium a study by -- some pages from a study by Hydro One.  And as I understand it, you didn't review these lead/lag studies, so I won't ask you something directly on it. 


But I understand that you pay Hydro One for some shared services, including corporate management and finance.


And in 2015 -- you don't need to turn this up, but it was Exhibit 4, tab 3, schedule 2, page 1 -- you ended up paying them 548,000 for these services. 


For these sums of money, does no one at Hydro One share information with you that might affect you financially? 


MS. CACERES:  Objection.  This witness cannot speak to what sharing practices Hydro One has vis-a-vis Hydro One Brampton. 


MR. JANIGAN:  I guess the question is:  Why not? 


MS. SPOEL:  Well, I think, Mr. Janigan, that your question, I mean, it is a very general question.  Does no one at Hydro -- does someone at Hydro One not share information with you?


What sort of -- perhaps you could stick to specific questions that have to do with the issue before us, and not a general question about how Hydro One deals with this particular subsidiary. 


MR. JANIGAN:  That's fine.  For example, in this case, the lead/lag study by Hydro One, do you know whether or not this study would have been forwarded to the attention of anybody at Hydro One Brampton? 


MR. VILLETT:  It was not forwarded to anyone at Hydro One Brampton. 


MR. JANIGAN:  And you would have been the person to receive it and review it, I take it? 


MR. VILLETT:  Likely, yes. 


MR. JANIGAN:  Okay. 


MR. VILLETT:  And just to clarify the earlier comments, when I said I hadn't reviewed the studies, that is at the time of filing.  Obviously, you have provided some information here that I have taken a look at as part of these compendiums. 


MR. JANIGAN:  But you didn't look at these lead/lag studies when you prepared your evidence? 


MR. VILLETT:  No, not when we prepared the evidence. 


MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  Thank you.


Madam Chair, those are all of my questions for this panel. 


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.  Who is next?  Mr. Aiken? 


MR. AIKEN:  Yes, thank you. 


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.
Cross-Examination by Mr. Aiken: 

MR. AIKEN:  I apologize in advance.  My cross is going to be a little disjointed so I don't cover what Mr. Janigan has done. 


First of all, I have a compendium that we should have marked as an exhibit.


MS. LEA:  K1.4, Energy Probe compendium.
EXHIBIT NO. K1.4:  ENERGY PROBE CROSS-EXAMINATION COMPENDIUM.


MR. AIKEN:  Turning to page 1 of the compendium, I want to get the impact numbers on the record. 


I can tell you that I have taken the figures on this table from the revenue requirement work form included in the settlement agreement.


And so my first question is:  Do you agree that the calculation of the pre-tax return shown on the top of the page is correct?  That comes up with the 8.8 percent? 


MR. VILLETT:  Yes, subject to check. 


MR. AIKEN:  And subject to check, do you also agree that the $435,000 number that you referred to in Mr. Janigan's cross is an appropriate number for a 1 percentage point change in the working capital allowance rate?


MR. VILLETT:  Yes, subject to check. 


MR. AIKEN:  Now, I want to discuss the Board's default value of 13 percent that Mr. Janigan touched on.


So if you would turn to pages 3 and 4 of the compendium, you will see the Board's letter of April 12, 2012 that reduced the default level from 15 percent to 13 percent. 


In the bottom paragraph on page 3, it says:

"However, the Board has reviewed the results of lead/lag studies filed by distributors in cost of service applications, and in each of those cases both the applied-for WCA and the final Board-approved WCA have been lower than 15 percent."


The Board goes on to say that is how they -- they're now using 13 percent. 


So if you go to page 2 of the compendium, under the heading A, "Original working capital filings," and if you just look at the first four columns, for lines 3 through 7, would you agree that it would be reasonable to assume that the Board's 13 percent is based on the approved WCA figures for those four utilities shown, given that they average 13.03 percent? 


MS. CACERES:  Objection.  It calls for speculation with respect to what the Board has considered.  And this concerns a letter dated April 12th, 2012, dealing with filing rate years effective 2013.


So, I mean, I don't see how this witness can speak to that. 


MR. AIKEN:  I am just asking if it is a reasonable interpretation of the numbers. 


MS. SPOEL:  Well, Mr. Aiken, the Board's letter says based on the results of WCA filed with the Board in the past few years.


How this witness can possibly know whether or not these were all the studies filed with the Board, some of the studies filed with the Board, or whatever, I really think that that would be speculation on his part.


MR. AIKEN:  That actually is going to be my next question.  Is the company aware of other lead/lag studies that were done and approved prior to April 12, 2012?  You have obviously done the extensive analysis of everything done since then.  Are you aware of anything done, other than these four, prior to that time? 


MR. VILLETT:  No.  We didn't do an extensive analysis prior to that time. 


MR. AIKEN:  Now, Mr. Janigan has touched on -- or has commented on whether the 13 percent is an appropriate number, based on the numbers possibly being wrong. 


Are you aware of the –-


MS. SPOEL:  Sorry, Mr. Aiken, I didn't raise this question with Mr. Janigan, but I am going to raise it with you.


Is any party here planning to call any evidence about the alleged or the suggested wrongness -- if I can use that word -- of these numbers?  Because at the moment there is no evidence before this Board that -- other than a letter from Mr. Shepherd, there is no evidence that we can rely on that there is anything wrong.


And if you are going to -- if you are planning to argue -- which I assume you are, given the direction your cross-examinations are going -- if you are planning to argue that we should be applying something other than 13 percent because the evidentiary basis for the Board's policy that the -- that applicants can use 13 percent, I'm not sure what you are going to rely on as evidence to make that argument.


Because it doesn't appear that you are going to be able to establish the evidentiary base for that through cross-examination of this witness.  So if you have something else you are planning to do, it would be useful for us to know what it is. 


MR. AIKEN:  Okay.  Could you turn to page -- first of all, to page 129 of the compendium?


This is the beginning of the Navigant study for Hydro One as part of their EB-2013-0416 case that is currently in front of the Board. 


Then a few pages further on at page 135 --


MS. CACERES:  Just for clarity for the record, we're talking about Hydro One Networks? 


MR. AIKEN:  Yes. 


MS. CACERES:  Okay. 


MR. AIKEN:  At page 135, there is a section labelled "Dollar weighting," and I just want to read that into the record.


It says:

"Both leads and lags should be dollar-weighted where appropriate and where data is available to accurately reflect the flow of dollars.  For example, suppose that a particular transaction has a lead time of 100 days and has a dollar value of $100.  Further, suppose that another transaction has a lead time of 30 days with a dollar value of $1 million.  A simple unweighted average of the two transactions would give us a lead time of 65 days.  However, when these two transactions are dollar-weighted, the resulting lead time would be closer to 30 days, which is more representative of how the dollars actually flow."


So then when you look at the lead/lag studies that have been done historically, the service lag -- which is the time between the service is provided and the meter is read -- that had historically been weighted by the number of customers, customers that were read monthly and customers that were read bimonthly.


And that -- it's usually the large number of customers who are read bimonthly, residential and GS less than 50 in particular.


MS. SPOEL:  Mr. Aiken, is that a statement that you are making, is that a question you are answering, or are you reading that from the Navigant report?  The comment that historically the numbers read billed monthly and bimonthly, is that -- are you asking the witness whether that is the case?  Or are you reading something from this report?  Or is that a statement that you were making?


MR. AIKEN:  That is a statement that I am making, that that's how the --


MS. SPOEL:  And do you have any evidence in this hearing to support that statement?  If you are going to ask --


MR. AIKEN:  Yes, I do.


MS. SPOEL:  -- us to redo this, we need some evidence.  I'm not suggesting you're wrong, it is just that I can't take your --


MR. AIKEN:  If you go to page --


MS. SPOEL:  -- comment as evidence.


MR. AIKEN:  Certainly.  At page 93 of the compendium, which illustrates this very clearly.  This is from Hydro Ottawa's lead/lag study in EB-2011-0054.  I am looking at table 4.  And there will you see how the service lag is calculated.


The residential and GS less than 50 are read bimonthly.  Therefore, their service lag or the midpoint of the service period is 30.42 days.  All of the other rate classes are read monthly.  And therefore their service lag is 15.21 days.


Second-last column shows the customer weighting, and then the last column shows the service lag based on the customer weight percentages times the service lags.


So that's how the service lags were calculated historically in lead/lag studies.


Then going back to the Hydro One Networks --


MS. CACERES:  Madam Chair, I am going to object.  There is no question.  Counsel is essentially reading in statements and purporting to cloak it as "evidence" in response to your earlier question, and unless there is a question, I say that counsel should move on to his next question if he doesn't have one presently on the document that we're reading.


MS. SPOEL:  Mr. Aiken, is there a question?


MR. AIKEN:  Yes.


MS. SPOEL:  A question for these witnesses?


MR. AIKEN:  Page 151 of the compendium, which is the last page of the Hydro One Networks' lead/lag study prepared by Navigant.  My question to this panel is, do you have any comments on the note -- or, sorry, on the paragraph at the top of this page, where it says:

"Navigant has prepared a table comparing the components of lead/lag studies that have been filed and is public.  The results are shown in table 19 below."


And then this is the specific sentence I would like you to comment on if you wish:

"Note that the prior studies are based on data of an older vintage and are mostly based on the customer weighting methodology for revenue lags.  This is an obsolete methodology, and HONI's current study is based upon the revenue weighting method for revenue lags."


So my question is, do you have any comment on that change?


MS. CACERES:  Madam Chair, I am going to object, because this study that we're looking at pertains to Hydro One Networks and pertains to particular data arising from that utility.


To have this witness comment on a statement of a document that is several pages long just seems unfair to this witness, and I don't see how that furthers the current question that the Board is dealing with.


MS. SPOEL:  Well, I think that it is a fair question to ask the witness whether he has any comment about Navigant's statement here that the methodology is obsolete.  Whether -- I don't -- and whether he can comment -- I mean, he is asking him if he can comment on it.  I think it is a fair question for him, whether or not he can comment and, if he can comment, what his comment might be.


MS. CACERES:  Thank you.


MR. VILLETT:  My comment would be, if you look at page 150, there's a paragraph there called "conclusions".  It talks about change -- why the working capital percentage has changed, and I don't see any reference in that -- in the conclusions to this change from customer weighting to revenue weighting.


So I would question how much impact that methodology change had when Navigant didn't feel that it was significant enough to include in the conclusions of their report.


MR. AIKEN:  And has Brampton done any benchmarking of its costs per customer associated with billing?


MR. VILLETT:  We typically do benchmarking based on the OEB yearbook, and also we've done benchmarking with the annual MEARIE survey, and I can't recall if there is any specific measures in the MEARIE survey related to customer billing.


MR. AIKEN:  Would you agree that your costs per customer are likely to be higher than a distributor that bills a significant number of its customers on a bimonthly basis?  Remember, I am asking about costs per customer.


MR. VILLETT:  Let me just clarify your question.  Are you asking the costs per customer for the total billing function?  Is that the question?


MR. AIKEN:  Yes.


MR. VILLETT:  Or in general, in total OM&A?


MR. AIKEN:  For the billing function, the sending out of the bills, collection, payment processing.  Effectively, aren't you doing twice as much as a utility who only bills bimonthly?


MR. VILLETT:  Not necessarily in all cases.  Certainly with postage and printing we would be doing twice as much, because we're sending out two sets of bills.  But on the other hand, you either could be -- there could be some benefits to sending out bills on a monthly basis, because they're getting more frequently -- perhaps customers don't call in as often.


So I can't make a blanket statement that our costs in total for the billing function are going to be higher or lower.


MR. AIKEN:  Would I be correct that Brampton would categorize a cost per customer comparison between two such distributors as potentially misleading or meaningless because it is on a cost-per-customer basis and that a more appropriate basis would be a cost -- comparison on cost per bill?


[Witness panel confers]

MR. VILLETT:  I think it is a difficult question to answer.  There are many factors that could impact the overall cost per customer.


I mean, certainly we use things like the MEARIE survey and data from the OEB yearbook to benchmark ourselves.  And we do think there's value in that.


MR. AIKEN:  Can you provide a rough estimate of the additional costs incurred by Brampton as a result of billing its customers on a monthly basis?  Things like postage, envelopes, paper stock, perhaps more people to do payment processing?


MS. SPOEL:  Mr. Aiken, as far as I'm aware, we've accepted a settlement proposal that includes a complete settlement of all the OM&A issues.


So I am not sure why, at this stage, you would be asking for those kind -- that kind of information, unless it somehow pertains to the calculation of working capital allowance. 


MR. AIKEN:  Yes, it does.  What I am looking for is if their -- for example, the increase in their costs is a million dollars, if they were -- or because they are monthly billing.  How does that stack up to potential reductions in the working capital costs that are continuing to be borne by ratepayers?


[Board Panel confers]


MR. AIKEN:  If you can't provide a number, that's fine.  I'll move on. 


MS. SPOEL:  Mr. Aiken, I think having settled OM&A, you can't start getting into comparisons of OM&A expenses with other costs.


If you'd wanted to do that, then you shouldn't have settled on the overall OM&A budget, or at least not on the customer care part of the OM&A budget.


That topic is closed.


MR. AIKEN:  To be clear, I am not objecting to the OM&A or any components of the OM&A.  We're quite happy that Brampton is billing on a monthly basis. 


MS. SPOEL:  Well, I don't...


MR. AIKEN:  Well, I will move on.


Do you agree that billing customers on a monthly basis as compared to billing them on a bimonthly basis results in improved cash flow for the distributor?


MR. VILLETT:  The service lag is one component of the working capital.  I believe there's typically nine elements.


So I would agree with respect to the service lag that it would improve cash flow, but there could be other variations in the other aspects of the working capital and the lead/lag studies that could offset such an improvement.


I think in our previous exhibit, K1.1, pages 2 and 3, we highlighted the significant variances between the different leads and lags for various utilities. 


If you look -- I mean, if you look at page 3, the difference in billing lag's 11.28 days between various utilities, and collections is 8.52.


Those things could easily offset any gains from monthly billing that would be reflected in the service lag. 


MR. AIKEN:  Okay.  While I have you at page 3, Document 3, of K1.1, would you agree that this type of analysis that you just mentioned -- you know, the service lag, the billing lag and the variance -- would be a great place for utilities to benchmark against best practices? 


MR. VILLETT:  I don't know if I can answer that.  I don't know -- we haven't conducted our own lead/lag study.  I don't know enough about how -- what Navigant does in terms of looking at these various components of billing and collections lags.


So I don't know if it is a fair area to do benchmarking or not. 


MR. AIKEN:  Okay.  Now, while we're on this table, I want to go through it.  I had originally planned to go through the lead/lag studies, or some of them, anyway, in my compendium.  But your summary includes more utilities, so I am just going to focus on it. 


But first I want to discuss some of the corrections that I think are needed in this table. 


First, with respect to Horizon, EB-2004-0002, would you take it subject to check that the retail revenue lag days is 67.3 and not 69.35, and that the service lag is 25.02 and not 27.06?


And those figures can be seen in my compendium.  And they're part of a corrected study that was provided by Navigant in the Horizon case.  And in fact, it is page 63 of my compendium.


MR. VILLETT:  Sorry, 63 is the table of contents.  Which page has the numbers? 


MR. AIKEN:  Oh, sorry.  I think I missed a "1."  I think it is page 163 of the compendium.


Yes.  There will you see the 67.3 and the 25.02. 


MR. VILLETT:  Yes.  I see those numbers and I will accept the corrections, subject to check. 


MR. AIKEN:  And similarly on the Veridian line, the service lag you show as 29.2, would you take subject to check that that was reduced to 22.3 days through a number of corrections they made in their evidence? 


MR. VILLETT:  Subject to check, yes. 


MR. AIKEN:  A couple of quick questions, I hope.


Do you agree that if the service lag for all of the distributors shown was reduced to 15.21 days, which is monthly billing, the change in the working capital allowance could be calculated easily, based on the information that is shown in your Document 3?


MR. VILLETT:  Sorry, can I clarify?  Are you suggesting that it could be easily calculated for Hydro One Brampton, or for the utilities shown in this document? 


MR. AIKEN:  For the utilities shown in this, yes. 


MR. VILLETT:  Yes, I believe so. 


MR. AIKEN:  Do you agree that there would be no change in the billing lag, collection lag, or payment processing lag, whether you are monthly or bimonthly? 


[Witness panel confers]


MR. AIKEN:  Or if you don't know, that's fine too. 


MR. VILLETT:  To the best of my knowledge, no, there wouldn't be a change.


MR. AIKEN:  And similarly, there would be no change in the expense lead days? 


MR. VILLETT:  Correct. 


MR. AIKEN:  I want to turn now briefly to Brampton's Document 4, which is the next page of K1.1. 


Line E is labelled:  "Shortfall in working capital allowance," and it appears to represent the difference from 2015 and future years; have I got that correct? 


MR. VILLETT:  Yes.


MR. AIKEN:  And I think you have indicated this, but I just want to make sure I understood it.


You have not provided any evidence to support the need for a working capital allowance requirement of the $64.4 million shown in -- shown for 2015?


You have relied on the Board's default factor; correct? 


MR. VILLETT:  Yes.  We followed the Board Filing Guidelines, which allow for 13 percent working capital.


The Board guidelines also do not require a utility to file a lead/lag study.  Previous decisions from the Board did not require us to file a lead/lag study. 


MR. AIKEN:  Am I correct that line E is a rate base figure and not a revenue requirement figure? 


MR. VILLETT:  It is a working capital allowance.  It is basically the total working capital expenses times the -- times the percentage, 13 percent for 2015. 


MR. AIKEN:  And that's a number that is -- forms part of your rate base, the 13 percent? 


MR. VILLETT:  Yes, 13 percent is in our rate base.


MR. AIKEN:  Would you undertake to expand this table to include lines that show the impact on the revenue requirement for 2016 through '19 and to break that revenue requirement down into the cost of debt, the return on equity, and the PILs components?


MS. CACERES:  Madam Chair, what is the utility of having to do something like that?  I don't see the relevance with respect to this particular issue.


This document -- and I will have the witness clarify  -- I believe was prepared for the purpose of showing the Board what the impact may be vis-a-vis these parameters.


MR. AIKEN:  The request is to see if the revenue-requirement impact is material.


[Board Panel confers]

MS. SPOEL:  We will allow that.


MR. VILLETT:  Can you just repeat the request again?  I am not sure I fully understand the -- what's being asked to be produced.


MR. AIKEN:  Yes.  It's -- I will give you an example of your 2006 number.  The rate base difference is 1.5 million.  What is the revenue-requirement impact -- in other words, take that number times your weighted average cost of capital, and then split that number down into its components.  And in the weighted average cost of capital your components are debt, equity, and PILs.


[Witness panel confers]

MR. VILLETT:  We think that would be a lot of work to do this calculation.  And again, we're not asking for a different working capital percentage.  We're asking for the 13 percent that is allowed for in the guidelines.


The point of this table was that, if the Board is going to look at the working capital issue, they should consider factors like cost of power that can erode our working capital requirements over the IRM period.


MS. SPOEL:  Well, Mr. Aiken, I think you said that the reason for your question was to determine what the impact 
-- whether the impact was material.


I think we already have on the record the 100 basis points' difference in working capital allowance is -- represents a $435,000 impact on ratepayers.


So if you were to take it from 13 percent in 2015 to 12.7 percent, that is 30 basis points.  You can probably do the math with what you've got.  I mean, for the argument I think you want to make you can probably do the math based on that 435,000 per 100 basis points without the witnesses having to do a whole lot of extra work.  Would that suffice for your purposes?


MR. AIKEN:  I think it probably would, yes.


MS. SPOEL:  Okay.  So for the purpose of your argument you can probably rely on that figure.


MR. AIKEN:  Yes.


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.


MR. AIKEN:  Assuming they agree with it, subject to check.


MS. SPOEL:  Well, let's assume that -- I didn't hear any big disagreement with that number or the general scale of that number, so why don't you use that number.


MS. LEA:  Sorry to interrupt.  I am not sure that I fully understand what's going on.  I do apologize.


Could someone explain to me -- the original request was to do what?  And I know that is not going to happen, but I just want to understand what we are going to get instead.


MR. AIKEN:  I think we're going to get nothing.


MS. SPOEL:  We're getting nothing.


MS. LEA:  Right.  But the original request, Mr. Aiken, was for the witness to do the calculation which Madam Chair has now described that we have enough evidence on the record to produce?


MR. AIKEN:  Yes.  I believe.


MS. SPOEL:  Well, Ms. Lea, if I perhaps can help.  It is not to do the calculation.  It is that there is enough evidence on the record about the impact on rates, of changing the working capital allowance, the impact on ratepayers, that Mr. Aiken doesn't need the additional evidence he asked for in order to make the argument directionally that he wants to make, because he has already got that evidence -- enough evidence on the record to make the argument, which is, how much, if you change the working capital allowance, how much is it going to affect what the ratepayers have to pay each year.


MS. LEA:  It has been accepted on the record that the 435,000 does in fact represent 100 basis points?


MS. SPOEL:  Subject to check, but for the moment we will take that number, I think.


MS. LEA:  Thank you.


MS. SPOEL:  Is that correct, Mr. Villett?


MR. VILLETT:  Correct.  Subject to check.


MS. LEA:  Thank you.


MR. AIKEN:  Thank you.  Those are my questions.


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you, Mr. Aiken.


Mr. Rubenstein.


Are you -- yes, you are left.

Cross-Examination by Mr. Rubenstein:

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  I just have a few questions just from a high level here.


I'm just wondering, I mean, we're talking a lot about working capital, and Mr. Aiken talked a lot about the specific numbers in the lead/lag studies.  I just want to take this to sort of a higher level.


How does Hydro One define working capital?  What is working capital?


MR. VILLETT:  Are you referring to Hydro One or Hydro One Brampton?


MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Sorry, Hydro One Brampton.  I apologize.


MR. VILLETT:  I mean, for the purposes of the rate filing, working capital is as per the OEB guidelines.  Take the OM&A expenses and cost of power.


MR. RUBENSTEIN:  But that's a formulaic calculation.  I am just trying to understand what does Hydro One Brampton consider?  Why does one need working capital?


MR. VILLETT:  You need working capital really to help fund your operations.  There's going to be cases where there's differences in the timing of when you receive revenues and when you have to pay expenses.


MR. RUBENSTEIN:  And my understanding is you, Hydro One Brampton, has not done any internal analysis to determine how much working capital, in dollars, that they need.  You have simply -- for the purpose of this application, you have used the Board's filing guidelines.  But you haven't done any internal analysis about what you actually need to fund your operations.


MR. VILLETT:  No.  As I said before, we followed the Board's filing guidelines and used the 13 percent.


MR. RUBENSTEIN:  So if the Board did determine that you should have a 1 or 2 percent reduction in the working capital amount, what is the actual effect to Hydro One Brampton, in terms of your operations?


MR. VILLETT:  Well, it would obviously impact our revenue requirement.  And we would have to go back and take a look at how that impacts our overall business plan and budgets.  And it could mean scaling back on some of the work or programs that we have to do.  We would have to assess that based on any decision.


MR. RUBENSTEIN:  But if this amount is to fund working capital, which you have -- which, we're talking about the operational impact of what -- the purposes of working capital.  And I -- because there's -- there's a timing difference between when you pay costs and when you receive the revenue from those customers.  And you don't know, exactly, how much actual working capital you need.


Is it potentially the outcome that if the Board reduces your working capital by 1 or 2 percent that there would actually be no change in your operations because you may not have needed, actually, that increased working capital?


MR. VILLETT:  It is really hard for me to speculate what the impact would be.  We would have to assess it.  I think it would have an impact on our business plans.  We would have to take a look and see how that -- how we handled that.


MR. RUBENSTEIN:  But for the purposes of today, because you have done no internal analysis, you couldn't tell the Board that it would or would not have an impact, because you have done no actual internal analysis about what your actual working capital requirement is.


MR. VILLETT:  No.  We have not done a lead/lag study to determine what our working capital would be or an internal analysis, similar to a lead/lag study.


MR. RUBENSTEIN:  And so when you do your budget on a yearly basis, putting aside this year, which is for a, you know, in rebasing cost-of-service year, but during an IRM year, when you're determining your annual budget, how much cash flow and how you allocate amounts, you don't do any sort of analysis about what the actual working capital amount would be?


MR. VILLETT:  Well, certainly when we put together a budget, we would look at, you know, what are our cash needs, based on the program spending that we have.


And we don't do a working capital analysis in the method of a lead/lag study, where we're looking at the various leads and lags, but we would look at our cash requirements and our funding requirements for the business. 


MR. RUBENSTEIN:  I understand that you don't do a lead/lag study, but you look at your cash flow needs.


And in that analysis that you have done either for this year or previous years, is it Hydro One's view that you need more working -- you need more sort of working capital, or less working capital, or the amount is appropriate?  Do you do any of that sort of analysis?


MR. VILLETT:  We didn't do a specific analysis in terms of whether 13 percent would have been appro -- you know, whether our needs are higher or lower than 13 percent.


MR. RUBENSTEIN:  And Mr. Villett, in your experience working for other organizations besides Hydro One Brampton, is that typical?  That an organization of that size, of your size, would not do any analysis about cash flow needs and what the actual working capital you would need is? 


MR. VILLETT:  Just to be clear, I didn't say we didn't do an analysis of our cash flow.  That's certainly part of our budgeting process. 


But my point was we didn't look at working capital in the sense of a lead/lag-type review. 


MR. RUBENSTEIN:  I understand, but putting aside the lead/lag study or lead/lag-type analysis, I'm talking about sort of working capital in its larger sense.  From an operational point of view, why a company needs working capital.


What does your analysis tell you?


MS. CACERES:  Objection, Madam Chair.  I think this question has been asked a number of different ways and you have the answer from the witness.


They haven't conducted a lead/lag study, and while they, for budgetary reasons, look at the question differently, they haven't done an internal analysis with respect to the WCA. requirement. 


MR. RUBENSTEIN:  No, I understand that they haven't done a lead/lag study.  I am not taking issue.


My understanding from the witness, he said that they have done some sort of cash flow, either informally or formally.  I'm not sure.


I am just trying to understand what that shows or what that -- this obviously going goes to the issue of what their actual working capital needs are. 


MS. SPOEL:  Well, Mr. Rubenstein, I think the witness has given you the best answer he can.  You have asked the question several times.


If you have, Mr. Villett, something more you can add to the role that that 13 percent plays in your analysis of your cash flow? 


MR. VILLETT:  No.  As I said, we would look at it a little bit differently when we go through the business plan.  I don't really have anything else to add. 


MR. RUBENSTEIN:  I will put this to the Board, and you can tell me if it is a fair question.


I am just trying to understand and ask the witness.  I put it to him -- I asked him if -- other organizations that have done that, and he stopped me and said:  Well, I'm just talking about -- I'm not saying we don't do an analysis.  We just don't do one with respect to lead/lag study.  I understand that.  He said he does some sort of analysis.


I'm just trying to understand, when it comes to the cash flow analysis that they do -- either it is formal or informal -- what does that show.


And I am not sure I actually got an answer to that question.  The answer was it is not a lead/lag study.  I recognize that. 


MS. SPOEL:  Maybe you can try one more time, Mr. Villett, and see if you can help Mr. Rubenstein.


MR. VILLETT:  I mean, when we do a business plan, you know, we'll forecast various components.  We will forecast where we think accounts payable will be, receivables, revenues, our expected capital expenditures, OM&A expenditures, all of those things that will affect cash flow.


And then we will determine borrowing requirements that we need in order to maintain adequate cash to operate the business.


And it is going to change from year to year, depending on our revenues, depending on what our capital program looks like.


That's kind of the analysis we do. 


MR. RUBENSTEIN:  And you wouldn't or -- I will be more open-ended with this question.  And you cannot tell us now that, looking forward on that cash flow basis, if you have sufficient cash flow, insufficient cash flow, or you have an appropriate amount of cash flow? 


MR. VILLETT:  I mean, we set our future business plans to have the cash flow that we need to operate the business.


Again, I can't -- I can't relate it back to the lead/lag or the 13 percent, because that is not really the way we necessarily look at our P&L when looking at the cash flow. 


MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Thank you very much.  Those are my questions.


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you, Mr. Rubenstein.


Ms. Lea? 


MS. LEA:  Thank you.
Cross-Examination by Ms. Lea:

MS. LEA:  Mr. Villett, you drew our attention to page 150 of the Energy Probe compendium, which is Exhibit K1.4.


And there, you drew our attention to the paragraph entitled "Conclusions" there, and to the three factors for the reduction in the revenue lag days that were listed in that conclusion.  I will wait for you to turn that up.


MR. VILLETT:  Yes, I've got it.


MS. LEA:  Thank you.


Now, we know that you bill monthly and read meters monthly.  Would either of the other two factors that are listed in this paragraph be relevant to Hydro One Brampton?


For example, do you share a CIS system with Hydro One Networks? 


MR. VILLETT:  No.  We don't.


I think this factor is quite relevant, and I do want to point to another reference with respect to the customer information system.  If I can point you to page 138 of Energy Probe? 


MS. LEA:  I'm there. 


MR. VILLETT:  Under the paragraph "Billing lag," so it states:

"Interviews with billing staff at HONI and analysis of meter billing data indicate that HONI customers have an average billing lag of 7.7 days, which is significantly shorter than the billing lag in the prior study due to the implementation of a new customer information system."


Now, I would also like to point you to another piece of evidence, which is page 197 of Energy Probe.  This is the Toronto Hydro Navigant study.


MS. LEA:  Yes. 


MR. VILLETT:  So if you look midway down, it states:

"The results of the study indicate a lower working capital requirement compared to THESL's EB-2007-0680 distribution lead/lag study.  A considerable amount of time has elapsed between the two studies.  The primary reason for the difference is the decrease in retail revenue lag days due to the upgrade of THESL's customer information system since the prior study."


So both Toronto Hydro and Hydro One have something in common with their lead/lag studies, and that is that they have implemented a new customer information system.


Now, if I can direct you to a piece of our evidence, Exhibit 2, tab 5, schedule 1, and it is page 13, so you will see in the paragraph near the bottom, "IT roadmap":


"HOBNI's AS400 computer system is over 35 years old and highly customized."

So my point here is that both Toronto Hydro and Hydro One benefited from the implementation of new customer information systems.  Navigant has stated, in the case of Toronto Hydro, that's the primary reason for the decrease in their working capital.  And in the case of Hydro One, they've said it is a significant factor with respect to the billing lag.


We don't have that situation at Hydro One Brampton.  In fact, our IT systems are quite old and we're looking to replace them. 


MS. LEA:  Thank you.  I think that had better be my last question.


Thank you, Madam Chair. 


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.


Do you have any redirect? 


MS. CACERES:  I actually -- 

Questions by the Board:


MS. LONG:  I just actually had one question.  With respect to -- we heard a bit of evidence this morning about load forecast and the 10-year average versus the 20-year trend.


I just wanted to get a sense of what the materiality factor for revenue requirement would be.  I think you said it would be in the tens of thousands?  Is that -- did I understand that correctly?


MR. GAPIC:  No.  What I was referring to when I talked about the tens of thousands of was in relation to Hydro One Brampton using a 20-year averaging approach to load forecasting.


MS. LONG:  Okay.


MR. GAPIC:  In response to the IR that talked about 20-year trending, the calculation that we did came up with a difference of about $166,000 of going from the ten-year averaging to the 20-year trend.


MS. LONG:  So 166,000.


MR. GAPIC:  Correct.


MS. LONG:  Thank you.


MS. SPOEL:  Do you have any re-examination?


MS. CACERES:  Madam Chair, I don't have any reply questions.


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.


That is the case.  I guess that concludes the evidence portion of this hearing, subject to some outstanding undertakings.  There were a couple of things from this morning I think you were going to calculate:  The three-year -- the impact of a three-year disposition of that account 1576.


But subject to those -- whatever undertakings there are outstanding, that completes this portion of the evidence.


Now, in terms of going forward, we thought it would be efficient perhaps to have oral argument in-chief and then the submissions by the intervenors in writing, if that would be -- and then reply argument in writing as well.


Would you be able to do your argument in-chief perhaps Friday morning?  Would that be sufficient time?


MS. CACERES:  That would be more than reasonable, Madam Chair.


MS. SPOEL:  I understand some parties have some conflicts tomorrow, so that will free everybody up tomorrow to attend to other matters, and then we can reconvene on Friday morning at 9:30 for the argument in-chief.


MS. LEA:  In the meantime, Madam Chair, do you wish Board Staff to structure an argument schedule for the remainder of the argument phase and present it to you on Friday morning?


MS. SPOEL:  Well, we'll -- yes.  Keeping in mind that there are relatively few issues, and we would like a fairly tight timetable so that we don't forget the evidence before it is time to write our decision, and so we can get it out fairly quickly, but you can have discussions with the parties and we will take it into consideration.


MS. LEA:  We will do that now.


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.  We are adjourned.  Thank you.

--- Whereupon the hearing adjourned at 3:32 p.m.
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